30TH BOARD OF REPRESENTATIVES CITY OF STAMFORD

President
MATTHEW QUINONES
Clerk of the Board
SUSAN NABEL

Majority Leader RODNEY PRATT Minority Leader MARY L. FEDELI

MINUTES

President Quinones called the meeting to order at 8:12 p.m. and read the call of the meeting:

I, Matthew Quinones, President of the 30th Board of Representatives of the City of Stamford, Connecticut, and pursuant to Section C2-10-4 of the Stamford Charter, hereby call a Special Meeting of said Board of Representatives at the following time and place:

Tuesday, May 1, 2018

8:00 p.m.
Legislative Chambers, 4th Floor
Government Center
888 Washington Boulevard
Stamford, CT 06904-2152

to consider and act upon the following:

 Operating (including Board of Education budget), Capital, E.G. Brennan Golf Course Fund, Debt Service Fund, Risk Management Fund, Parking Fund, Active Medical Fund, Anti-Blight Programs Fund, Grant Funded Programs Fund, Police Extra Duty Fund, Harbor Commission Fund, Marina Operating Fund and WPCA Fund Budgets for the fiscal year 2018/2019, as transmitted by the Board of Finance on April 20, 2018, pursuant to provisions of Section C8-30-7 of the Stamford Charter; and RESOLUTIONS associated therewith.

AGENDA

INVOCATION: Led by Bishop James Hinton.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG: Led by President Matthew Quinones

ROLL CALL: Conducted by Clerk of the Board Susan Nabel. There were 36 members present and 4 absent or excused (Reps. Aquila, Coleman, Cottrell, de la Cruz, DePina, Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Figueroa, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Kolenberg, Lee, Lion, Mahoney, Matherne, McGarry, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Quinones, Roqueta, Saftic, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace, Watkins and Zelinsky present; Reps. Adams, DeLuca, Liebson and Lutz absent). See Vote Record 2086.

¹COMMITTEE/BUDGET PRESENTATION: Monica Di Costanzo, Chair, Fiscal Committee

Chair Di Costanzo reviewed the Fiscal Committee's <u>recommended cuts</u> to the City's Operations Budget below and moved to approve the City's Operating Budget as cut by the committee, which motion was seconded.

Operating Budget		Committee Action
Operating Baaget	Page 29 - \$5,000 – Administration / Director of Administration / Full Time Salary	APPROVED 9-1-0
	Page115 – \$150,000 – Facilities & Parks Maintenance / Beaches & Parks Enforcement / Purchased Property Services	APPROVED 7-3-0
	Page 179 – \$15,000 – Operations Administration / Operations Administration / Full Time Salary	APPROVED 10-0-0
	Page 187 – \$5,000 – Public Safety, Health & Welfare / Public Safety, Health & Welfare Admin / Full Time Salary	APPROVED 7-2-1
	Page 194 – \$250,000 – Public Safety, Health & Welfare / Police Department / Overtime	APPROVED 6-3-1
	Page 250 – \$5,000 – Legal Affairs / Legal Department / Full Time Salary	APPROVED 10-0-0
	Page 250 – \$50,000 – Legal Affairs / Legal Department / Purchased Professional Services	APPROVED 7-2-1
	Page 266 – \$120,094 – Mayor's Office / Citizen's Service Center / Citizens' Services Manager	APPROVED 7-3-0

¹ Video Time Stamp Pt. 1 – 00:04:55

_

> Page 269 – \$10,000 – Mayor's Office / Mayor's Office / Full Time Salary

APPROVED 9-1-0

Page 269 – \$63,909 – Mayor's Office / Mayor's Office / Other Salary APPROVED 10-0-0

Page 279 – \$2,086 – Government Services / Town and City Clerk / Full **APPROVED 10-0-0** (

Time Salary

<u>Total</u> \$ 676,089

President Quinones stated that the Board would vote to approve the report of the Fiscal Committee as a whole and called for any motions to amend the report.

²A motion to cut an additional \$150,000 from Page 115 - Facilities & Parks Maintenance / Beaches & Parks Enforcement / Purchased Property Services was made and seconded.

Representative Cottrell read the following into the record:

Representatives:

The membership of the Cove Neighborhood Association has asked me to write to you as part of the Public Hearing comments involved in the Budget process. As many of you know the Cove Neighborhood envelops Cove Island Park, Cummings Park and West Beach. This includes Districts 1, 4 and 8.

Many of our residents in the Cove have fond feelings for these City Parks that in some cases have been formed over multiple generations.

It has become worrisome to many that this year's budget shows a cut to the Parks Police program and a request of \$300,000.00 for an Ambassador program. We remember when Parks Police were a regular presence in our parks and a feeling of safety greeted us upon our visits. Stamford may be considered a safe city by many standards, but safety is not only measured by crime report statistics. A feeling of safety is established by many small and difficult to measure indices. Needless to say, the primary source of this safe feeling is reinforced in the presence of a uniformed officer who understands what can and cannot be done in our Parks.

We really do not feel that an Ambassador can instill that same feeling since any serious matters they encounter could not be handled by them and they would simply be calling for a uniformed officer to deal with the problem.

For this reason, we respectfully request you eliminate the Mayor's request for the \$300,000.00 Ambassador Program.

² Video Time Stamp Pt. 1 − 00:08:30

This amount of money could go a long way toward bringing the Parks Police back up to numbers that would increase the sense of safety in our parks that we feel is so important.

Thank You

Kevin Quick President Cove Neighborhood Association cnastamford@gmail.com

There was continued discussion of this item. .

Representative Matherne read the following excerpt from a press release into the minutes:

On Thursday 04/26/18, the Stamford Police Department Patrol Division enacted a Quality of Life Enforcement detail at Lione Park. The purpose of the detail was to curb this concerning activity and to bring awareness to others that simple disorder in the park will not be tolerated. Within the 2 ½ hours that the detail was running the Officers issued 33 infraction summonses for offenses that dealt with the above behavior, 3 custodial drug arrests for sales and for interfering with the Police, 3 vehicles towed, a large amount of alcohol seized and a outdoor kitchen was dismantled. At the time of this operation there were approximately 100 persons loitering in the parking area of the park, all within close proximity of a youth soccer game occurring on the field.

Police Chief Jon Fontneau stated, "The Stamford Police Department is the primary crime fighting agency in the City of Stamford. We are confident that with a multifaceted approach and working with Parks and Recreation and other resources we will continue to address these types of concerns within our parks."

Types of tickets issued included numerous infractions for possession of marijuana, alcohol in glass containers, possession of hard alcohol, and infractions for creating a public disturbance (urination in public). Two arrests were made for drug transactions in and around the park.

Representative Matherne also read a letter from Officer Peter Gould:

I wanted to alert you to something.

I just saw a press release to The Advocate concerning a Quality of Life enforcement detail that happened last night at Lione Park. The press release talks about a major enforcement initiative that was undertaken in the park, with some drug deal arrests, traffic enforcement, and an unauthorized food sales as well as an alcohol sales operation that were both taken down.

What the press release doesn't mention is that I was ON this detail. In fact before it started, I provided a brief training session for the other officers on how to cite for violations of the park regulations. I was introduced to the group by Captain Hohn as "the guru of the park regulations."

When it came time to do the enforcement of the food sales operation and the alcohol sales operation, I did that part of the enforcement, I issued the summonses, I seized the evidence, and I wrote the police reports.

Yet in the press release, Chief Fontneau is quoted as saying "the Stamford Police Department is the primary crime fighting agency in Stamford" and Ted Jankowski is quoted as saying the Office of Public Safety and the Police Department were behind the operation – with ZERO mention that it was a mutual thing.

To be fair: while I handled the park regulation enforcement, city police handled the drug sales arrests, we both collaborated on traffic enforcement, and I did parking enforcement (including people who were parked in handicapped spaces). So it was absolutely mutual. I'm not saying I'm a hero or it was a one-person operation or anything like that. But there's clearly an agenda to pretend this was 100% SPD with no park police involvement at all, and that's simply false.

I'm concerned that some of your members may read the resulting article and be fooled.

Now, the Advocate reporters know what's going on as well, and they may choose to ask some questions and not just print the press release.

³After extensive discussion among the members, a motion was made to take the vote on this motion by a roll call vote was seconded and approved by a vote of 26-9-1 (Reps. Aquila, Cottrell, de la Cruz, Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Figueroa, Graziosi, Kolenberg, Matherne, McGarry, Michelson, Miller, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Roqueta, Saftic, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace, Watkins and Zelinsky in favor; Reps. Coleman, DePina, Giordano, Jacobson, Lee, Lion, Mahoney, McMullen and Moore opposed; Rep. Quinones abstaining). See Vote Record 2087.

⁴After further discussion, the motion to cut \$150,000 from Facilities & Parks Maintenance / Beaches & Parks Enforcement / Purchased Property Services was approved by a roll call vote of 27-9-0 (Reps. Aquila, Cottrell, de la Cruz, Fedeli, Figueroa, Graziosi, Kolenberg, Lee, Mahoney, Matherne, McGarry, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Roqueta, Saftic, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace, Watkins and Zelinsky in favor; Reps. Coleman, DePina, Di Costanzo, Giordano, Jacobson, Lion, Morson, Nabel and Quinones opposed).

⁵It was noted that the Fiscal Committee had voted to include a recommendation in the budget transmittal to the Board of Finance that the \$150,000 cut approved by that committee be placed in contingency. A motion to amend this to a recommendation in the budget transmittal to the Board of Finance that the \$300,000 cut be placed in contingency was made and seconded.

A friendly amendment to the motion to specify that the funds be placed in contingency "to be used for park police" was made and accepted.

A friendly amendment to the motion to specify that the funds be placed in contingency "to be used for policing the parks" was made and rejected.

³ Video Time Stamp Pt. 1 − 00:26:38

⁴ Video Time Stamp Pt. 1 − 00:41:30

⁵ Video Time Stamp Pt. 1 – 00:45:32

A friendly amendment to the motion to change the amount to the amount requested by the department less the Mayor's cut, \$171,600, was accepted.

After discussion of this item this motion and the second were subsequently withdrawn.

Chair Di Costanzo noted that in light of the Board's vote, the original recommendation of the Committee is no longer valid.

⁶A motion to cut \$130,000 from Page 188, Public Safety, Health & Welfare / Emergency Communications Center / 911 Director was made, seconded and failed by a vote of 3-32-0 (Reps. McGarry, , Saftic and Zelinsky in favor; Reps. Aquila, Coleman, Cottrell, de la Cruz, DePina, Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Figueroa, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Kolenberg, Lee, Lion, Mahoney, Matherne, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Quinones, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace and Watkins opposed). See Vote Record 2088.

⁷A motion to include a recommendation in the budget transmittal to the Board of Finance that the \$300,000 cut from Facilities & Parks Maintenance / Beaches & Parks Enforcement / Purchased Property Services be placed in contingency was made, seconded and approved by a vote of 33-1-1 (Reps. Aquila, Coleman, Cottrell, de la Cruz, DePina, Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Kolenberg, Lee, Lion, Matherne, McGarry, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Roqueta, Saftic, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace, Watkins and Zelinsky in favor; Rep. Mahoney opposed; Rep. Quinones abstaining). See Vote Record 2089.

⁸A motion to cut \$2,827,192 from Page 16, line 7 (\$3,653,281 total cut including previous cuts and the Fiscal Committee recommendations), City Operating Budget was made and seconded.

⁹After extensive discussion of this motion, a motion to move the question was made and seconded and approved by a vote of 27-8-1 (Reps. Aquila, Coleman, Cottrell, de la Cruz, DePina, Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Figueroa, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Kolenberg, , Michelson, Miller, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pia, Pratt, Quinones, Saftic, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace and Zelinsky in favor; Reps. Lee, Lion, Mahoney, Matherne, McGarry, McMullen, Pendell and Watkins opposed.) See Vote Record 2090.

The Board took a 5 minute recess at 10:10 pm and reconvened at 10:15 pm.

The motion to cut \$2,827,192 from the General Operating Budget (non-Board of Education) failed by a vote of 14-21-0 (Reps. Aquila, Cottrell, Fedeli, Graziosi, Kolenberg, Mahoney, McGarry, McMullen, Miller, Pia, Saftic, Sherwood, Stella and Zelinsky in favor; Reps. Coleman, de la Cruz, DePina, Di Costanzo, Figueroa, Giordano, Jacobson, Lee, Lion, Matherne, Michelson, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Pendell, Pratt, Quinones, Roqueta, Summerville, Wallace and Watkins opposed.) See Vote Record 2091.

⁶ Video Time Stamp Pt. 1 − 00:46:00

⁷ Video Time Stamp Pt. 1 − 01:09:20

⁸ Video Time Stamp Pt. 1 − 01:14:49

⁹ Video Time Stamp Pt. 1 – 01:56:54

¹⁰A motion to cut an additional \$1,413,596 from Page 16, line 7, City Operating Budget was made and seconded.

A friendly amendment was made to exclude outside agencies from this cut, which amendment was accepted.

¹¹After extensive discussion of this motion, a motion to move the question was made, seconded and approved by a vote of 31-5-0 (Reps. Aquila, Coleman, de la Cruz, DePina, Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Figueroa, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Kolenberg, Lion, Mahoney, McGarry, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pia, Pratt, Quinones, Saftic, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace, Watkins and Zelinsky in favor; Reps. Cottrell, Lee, Matherne, Pendell and Roqueta opposed.) See <u>Vote Record 2092</u>.

The motion to cut \$1,413,596 from the General Operating Budget (non-Board of Education) was approved by a vote of 21-15-0 (Reps. Aquila, Cottrell, de la Cruz, Fedeli, Graziosi, Kolenberg, Mahoney, Matherne, McGarry, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Nabel, Patterson, Pia, Saftic, Sherwood, Summerville, Watkins and Zelinsky in favor; Reps. Coleman, DePina, Di Costanzo, Figueroa, Giordano, Jacobson, Lee, Lion, Morson, Pendell, Pratt, Quinones, Roqueta, Stella and Wallace opposed.) See Vote Record 2093.

¹²A motion to cut \$76,463 from page 268, Mayor's Office / Special Asst/City Info Mgr was made and seconded.

¹³After discussion of this motion, a motion to move the question was made, seconded and approved by a vote of 30-5-1 (Reps. Aquila, Coleman, de la Cruz, DePina, Fedeli, Figueroa, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Kolenberg, Lee, Lion, Mahoney, McGarry, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Quinones, Roqueta, Stella, Summerville, Wallace and Watkins in favor; Reps. Cottrell, Di Costanzo, Matherne, Sherwood and Zelinsky opposed; Rep. Saftic abstaining.) See Vote Record 2094.

The motion to cut \$76,463 from page 268, Mayor's Office / Special Asst/City Info Mgr failed by a vote of 14-20-1 (Reps. Aquila, Cottrell, Graziosi, Kolenberg, Mahoney, Matherne, McGarry, McMullen, Patterson, Pendell, Roqueta, Saftic, Sherwood and Zelinsky in favor; Reps. Coleman, DePina, Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Figueroa, Giordano, Jacobson, Lee, Lion, Michelson, Miller, Morson, Nabel, Pia, Pratt, Quinones, Stella, Summerville, Wallace and Watkins opposed; Rep. Moore abstaining.) See Vote Record 2095.

¹⁴A motion to cut \$160,000 from page 269, Mayor's Office / Other Salary was made, and seconded.

¹⁵After discussion of this item, a motion to move the question was made, seconded and approved by a vote of 33-3-0 (Reps. Aquila, Coleman, de la Cruz, DePina, Di Costanzo Fedeli, Figueroa, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Kolenberg, Lee, Lion, Mahoney, McGarry, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Quinones, Roqueta,

¹⁰ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 - 00:02:09

¹¹ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 00:14:39

¹² Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 00:16:47

¹³ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 00:30:46

¹⁴ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 00:33:07

¹⁵ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 00:45:09

Saftic, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace and Watkins in favor; Reps. Cottrell, Matherne, and Zelinsky opposed.) See <u>Vote Record 2096</u>.

The motion to cut \$160,000 from page 269, Mayor's Office / Other Salary failed by a vote of 8-28-0 (Reps. Cottrell, Kolenberg, Mahoney, McGarry, McMullen, Roqueta, Saftic and Zelinsky in favor; Reps. Aquila, Coleman, de la Cruz, DePina, Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Figueroa, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Lee, Lion, Matherne, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Quinones, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace and Watkins opposed.) See Vote Record 2097.

¹⁶A motion to restore \$120,094 to Page 266, Mayor's Office / Citizens Services / Citizens Services Manager was made and seconded. A friendly amendment to change this amount to \$85,000 was accepted.

¹⁷After extensive discussion of this motion, a motion to move the question was made, seconded and approved by a vote of 30-6-0 (Reps. Aquila, Coleman, Cottrell, de la Cruz, DePina, Figueroa, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Kolenberg, Lee, Lion, McGarry, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Nabel, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Quinones, Roqueta, Saftic, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace and Watkins in favor; Reps. Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Mahoney, Matherne, Morson and Zelinsky opposed.) See Vote Record 2098.

The motion to restore \$85,000 to Page 266, Mayor's Office / Citizens Services / Citizens Services Manager failed by a vote of 13-21-1 (Reps. Coleman, DePina, Di Costanzo, Figueroa, Giordano, Jacobson, Lee, Lion, Miller, Morson, Pendell, Wallace and Watkins in favor; Reps. Aquila, Cottrell, de la Cruz, Graziosi, Kolenberg, Mahoney, Matherne, McGarry, McMullen, Michelson, Moore, Nabel, Pia, Pratt, Quinones, Roqueta, Saftic, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville and Zelinsky opposed; Rep. Fedeli abstaining.) See Vote Record 2099.

A motion to hold the vote on the Operating Budget, pending confirmation of the total number by OPM, was made, seconded and approved by unanimous voice vote.

¹⁸Chair Di Costanzo reported that the Fiscal Committee took no action on the City's Board of Education Budget and moved to approve of the Board of Education Budget, in the amount of \$272,790,679, which motion was seconded.

¹⁹A motion to cut \$585,500 from the Board of Education Budget was made, seconded and failed by a vote of 1-32-2 (Rep. Zelinsky in favor; Reps. Aquila, Coleman, Cottrell, de la Cruz, DePina, Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Figueroa, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Kolenberg, Lee, Lion, Mahoney, Matherne, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Roqueta, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace and Watkins opposed; Reps. Quinones and Saftic abstaining). See Vote Record 2100.

²⁰The motion to approve the Board of Education Budget, in the amount of \$272,790,679, was approved by a vote of 35-0-1 (Reps. Aquila, Coleman, Cottrell, de la Cruz, DePina, Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Figueroa, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Kolenberg, Lee, Lion, Mahoney,

¹⁶ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 00:47:36

¹⁷ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 01:02:33

¹⁸ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 01:07:54

¹⁹ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 01:08:40

Matherne, McGarry, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Roqueta, Saftic, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace, Watkins and Zelinsky in favor; Rep. Quinones abstaining.).See <u>Vote Record 2101</u>.

²²Chair Di Costanzo made a motion to approve the following Funds Budgets on Consent:

E. G. Brennan Fund	\$1,347,259
Debt Service Fund	\$56,748,215
Risk Management Fund	\$13,370,226
Parking Fund	\$7,180,000
Active Medical Fund	\$38,657,740
Anti- Blight Programs Fund	\$328,055
Grant Funded Programs Fund	\$10,384,333
Police Extra Duty Fund	\$10,303,000
Harbor Commission Fund	\$48,459
Marina Operating Fund	\$373,978
WPCA Fund	\$27,275,550

The above fund budgets were approved by on consent by unanimous voice vote.

²¹The motion to approve the Operating Budget, in the amount of \$564,128,203, including Board of Education support, was approved by a vote of 35-0-1 (Reps. Aquila, Coleman, Cottrell, de la Cruz, Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Figueroa, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Kolenberg, Lee, Lion, Mahoney, Matherne, McGarry, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Quinones, Roqueta, Saftic, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace, Watkins and Zelinsky in favor; Rep. DePina abstaining.) See Vote Record 2102.

²³ Chair Di Costanzo reported that the Fiscal Committee took no action on the City's Capital Budget, but there are edits to the Capital Budget amount to change the total amount to \$50,227,711 (to include the WPCA) and authorization for the issuance of general obligation bonds amount to \$19,940,000 (to include the Parking Fund). A motion to amend the Capital Budget to \$50,227,711 was made, seconded and approved by a vote of 35-0-0 (Reps. Aquila, Coleman, Cottrell, de la Cruz, Di Costanzo, Fedeli, Figueroa, Giordano, Graziosi, Jacobson, Kolenberg, Lee, Lion, Mahoney, Matherne, McGarry, McMullen, Michelson, Miller, Moore, Morson, Nabel, Patterson, Pendell, Pia, Pratt, Quinones, Roqueta, Saftic, Sherwood, Stella, Summerville, Wallace, Watkins and Zelinsky in favor.) See Vote Record 2103.

²⁴A motion to amend the amount of the Operating Budget Resolution to \$564,128,203, including Board of Education support, was made, seconded and approved by unanimous voice vote.

²⁵A motion to approve the Operating Budget Resolution, in the amount of \$564,128,203, including Board of Education support, was made, seconded and approved by unanimous voice vote.

²¹ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 01:16:46

²² Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 01:19:47

²³ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 01:21:31

²⁴ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 01:25:12

²⁵ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 01:25:57

\$1,347,259 - E. G. Brennan Fund \$56,748,215 - Debt Service Fund \$13,370,226 - Risk Management Fund \$7,180,000 - Parking Fund \$38,657,740 - Active Medical Fund \$328,055 - Anti-Blight Programs Fund \$10,384,333 - Grant Funded Programs Fund, \$10,303,000 - Police Extra Duty Fund \$48,459 - Harbor Commission Fund \$373,978 - Marina Operating Fund \$27,275,550 - WPCA Fund

Said motion was made, seconded and approved by unanimous voice vote

A motion to approve the Capital Budget Resolution, as amended, in the amount of \$50,227,711, including an authorization for the issuance of general obligation bonds in the amount of \$19,940,000 was made, seconded and approved by unanimous voice vote

ADJOURNMENT:

President Quinones adjourned the meeting at 11:48 p.m.

This meeting is on video (Pt. 1 & Pt. 2)

²⁶A motion to approve the Board of Education Budget Resolution, in the amount of \$272,790,679, including Board of Education support, was made, seconded and approved by unanimous voice vote (*Rep. Quinones abstaining*).

²⁷A motion was made to approve the Special Funds Budgets Resolution in the amounts of:

²⁸A motion to amend the Capital Budget Resolution to \$50,227,711, including an authorization for the issuance of general obligation bonds amount to \$19,940,000 was made, seconded and approved by unanimous voice vote

²⁶ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 01:26:07

²⁷ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 01:26:47

²⁸ Video Time Stamp Pt. 2 – 01:28:11